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TO:  COMMISSIONERS AND INTERESTED PERSONS 
 
FROM:  SHERILYN SARB, DEPUTY DIRECTOR, SD COAST DISTRICT 
  GABRIEL BUHR, COASTAL PROGRAM MANAGER, SD COAST DISTRICT 
 
SUBJECT: PROPOSED MINOR AMENDMENT #LCP-6-CAR-15-0024-2 (DENSITY 

BONUS UPDATE) TO THE CITY OF CARLSBAD LOCAL COASTAL 
PROGRAM  

 
The City of Carlsbad is requesting that its certified Local Coastal Program 
Implementation Plan (IP) be amended through minor revisions to the text of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  The purpose of this amendment is to make the City’s regulation of density 
bonuses consistent with recent changes to State law (California Assembly Bill 2222).  
Specifically, these changes address the replacement of affordable dwelling units when 
requesting a new density bonus, and the duration of any density bonus agreement. This 
amendment was filed on September 23, 2015, pursuant to Section 30514(c) of the Coastal 
Act and Section 13553 of the Commission’s Regulations.  
 
Procedure 
 
Pursuant to Section 30514 (c) of the Coastal Act and Section 13554 (a) of the 
Commission’s Regulations (Cal. Code of Regs., tit. 14), the Executive Director has 
determined that the proposed amendment is “minor” in nature. Section 13554 (a) defines 
a minor amendment as changes in wording which make the use as designated in the 
zoning ordinances, maps or other implementing actions more specific and which do not 
change the kind, location, intensity or density of use and are consistent with the certified 
land use plan.  
 
Pursuant to Section 13555, the Executive Director will report this determination to the 
Coastal Commission at the following date and location: 
 
DATE and TIME:  LOCATION: 
Wednesday, November 4, 2015   Oceano Resort Hotel 
 9:00 a.m.  280 Capistrano Drive 
  Half Moon Bay, CA 94019 
        
At that time, any objections to this determination, received within ten days of the 
transmittal of this notice, will also be reported to the Commission. This proposed minor 
amendment will be deemed approved unless one-third of the appointed members of the 
Commission request that it be processed in accordance with Section 13555 (b) of the 
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Code of Regulations as a major amendment. Otherwise, the minor amendment will 
become effective ten days from the date the Commission concurs with the Executive 
Director’s designation. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information regarding this proposed 
amendment, please contact Gabriel Buhr at the above office. Any objections to the 
“minor” amendment determination must be received within ten working days of the date 
of this notice. 
 
Amendment Description  
 
The subject amendment reflects recent changes in State law and more specifically would 
result in two minor changes to the City’s implementing ordinance: 1) identification that if 
a residential building contains affordable dwelling units within five years of when it is 
demolished, then those units must be replaced as a part of any new proposed 
development on the subject site, and 2) extension of the time period that an approved 
density bonus agreement must remain in effect from 30 to 55 years. 
 
The intent of the amendment request is to make the City’s regulation of density bonuses 
consistent with California Assembly Bill 2222 (Nazarian, 2014) which was signed into 
law by the Governor in 2014.  The Commission previously approved an amendment to 
the City’s LCP at the August 2014 hearing that included more substantive changes to the 
City’s density bonus provisions (LCP-6-CAR-14-0596-2). These changes allowed for 
density exceptions to the standards already in place in the LCP, provided that these 
exceptions would not conflict with any resource protection standards contained in the 
LCP.  The proposed changes in the subject amendment would not change how the density 
bonus provisions already contained within the City’s LCP are implemented in relation to 
coastal resources, and would not result in any new application of bonuses, incentives or 
waivers as previously certified within the implementing ordinance of the City’s LCP. 
 
Therefore, as proposed, the amendment would not result in any impacts to public access 
or coastal resources. The amendment would not change any underlying zoning or affect 
the density, intensity, location, or type of use within the City’s Coastal Zone, and can be 
found in conformance with the certified LUP as amended herein.  
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